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STATE OF NEW YORK: DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

A - —, - -

In the Matter of the
Violations of Article 19

of the Environmental ORDER ON
Conservation Law of the CONSENT
State of New York by:

File No.
TACONIC PLASTICS, LTD R4-2000~0310-17

Respondent. .

1. Durguant to Envirconmental Conservation Law ("ECL")
Article 19, the Deparxtment of Environmental Conservation
(YDepartment®) has jurisdiction over matters concerning air

resources and pollutien.

2. Respondent, Taconic Plastics, LTD, owns and operateg a
facility at 136 CoombXook R4., (P.O. Bax 136),Petersburg, New
York 12138 ("facility"). The facility is located in an ozone

transport reglon.

3. The facility has a certificate to cperate 10 air
emiasion sources (Pexrmit # 383400-0126) which was issued on

May 1, 1990.

4. Departmant staff inspected the facility on
November 24, 1995 and March 15, 2000 and found a ceating line
not included ia the facility’s permit (“new coating line”).
Respondent is still opexating the old coating line (“old
coating line®) which is included in the facility’as pezmit.

§. The new coating line is connected to emission point
# 0000D and it has no air pollution contrel equipment.

6. Regulations at 6 NYCRR 201-6.1(a) set forth the
criteria for Title V applicability.

(a) Requiremant for a Title V Facility Permic.
Except a@ otherwise set foxth herein, no person shall
operate any of the following stationary scurces without
obtaining a Title V permit. .

(1) Any major stationaxy source (as dafined
under Subpart 201-2),
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(2) Any stationary source subject to a standard
or limitation, or other requirement under the federal
New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) in 40 CFR Part

60, et seq;

(3) Any stationary source including an area
gource, subject to a standard or other requirement
regulating hazardous air pollutants under Section 112
of the Act, except that a source is not required to
obtain a Title V permit solely because it is subject to
regulations ox requirements pwomulgated for the contxrol
of accidental releases of substances regulated under

Section 112(r) of the Act;
(¢) Any affected source; and

(5) Any stationary source in a oategory
designated by the Adminimtratoxr and added by the

Department pursuant to rulemaking.

7. Regulatione at 6 NYCRR 201-2.1(b) (21) (iii) (B)
define a major gstationary source of air pollutants that
directly emits or has the potential to emit in an ozone
transport region 50 tons or more per year of volatile

organlc compounds,

8, The new coating line has the potential to emit
327,624 pounds per year or approximately 183 tons of
volatile organic compounds (“VOC”) pex year.

5, The facility became a major source as defined in
6 NYCRR 201-1(b) (21) (11i) with the installation of the new

coating line.

=g part 201-6,.1 (b)

10, Regulations € NYCRR 201-6.1(b) set forth the
requirements to have a preconstruction permits before
constructing a new stationary source subject to Title V:

(b) No person shall construct any new stationary source
which will be required to obtain a Title V facility
permit as described in (a) above before obtaining a
permit from the Department. Such permits shall
authorize both construction and operatioen in accordance
with all applicable state and federal requirements.

11. Respondent construated the new coating line in
November 1998 without a preconatruction permit.
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12, Respondent’s construction of the new coating line
without a preconstruction permit 1s a violation of
6 NYCRR 201-6.1(b).

rt 1-6.3(a) (3

13. Regulations at 6 NYCRR 201-6.3(a) (3)provide that a
Title V facility permit application must be filed with the
Department within one year of the commencement of operation of

new emigsion unit(9) or modified emiasion unitg at an existing
stationary source which makes the source subjeoct to Title V
permitting.

14. Respondent’s facility, which is a teflon c¢pating
facility, was required to have filed a Title V permit
application by no later than January 1, 2000.

15. Respondent haen‘t filed a Title V application for the
facility.

16. Reapondent violated 6 NYCRR 201-6.3(a) (2)by not
filing a Title V application for the facilicy.

Part 228

17. Regulakions at 6 NYCRR Paxrt 226.3 {(a) state that; "No
person shall cause or allow the usage of coatings that exceed
the allowable pounds of volatile organie compounds (“VOC”) per
gallon, minus water and excluded VOC at application specified
in table 1 of ceotion 228.7 and table 2 of secotion 228.8 of
this Part, unless a coating system meeting the requirements of
gubdivision (d) of this section 18 utilized or unless control
equipment meeting the reguirements of subdivisien (b) and (c)
of this section is installed and operated.

18, The old and new cocating lines are subject to & 2.9
ibs./gallon VOC limit as met forth in Table 1 of 6 NYCRR Part

228,7 for paper coating lines.
A. 0Old Copa Line

19, Department staff inspected the facility and obtained
records of mdhesive coating usage for the old coating line.

20. Based on Respondent’s recardas, Reepondent has viglated
the Part 228.7, 2.9 lbs,/gallon VOC limit on the old coating
line for 114 separate runs during 59 days in 1999 causing the
discharge of 1180 pounds of VOC emigsione in excesa of
allowable limits.
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New Coa Line

21. The new coating line became subject to Part 228 upon
its constructien in November 1998,

22, Department staff inspected the facility and obtained
records of adhesive coating usage for the new ¢oating line.

23. Based on Respondent ‘s records, Respondent has
violated Part 228. 7, the 2.9 lbs./galloa VOC limit on the new
coating line for 633 separate runs during 248 days from January
1999 through Februaxy 2000 causing the discharge of 8537 pounds
of VoC emissions in excess of allowable limits.

31:2.3 () and (b Violati

24, Pursuant to 6 NYCRR 231-2.2 (b) (2),the regulations in
6 NYCRR 231.2 are applicable to the new coating line because
its VOC annual potential to emit is greater than 50 tons pex
year,

25. Regulations at 6 NYCRR 231-2.3(a) prohibit the
construction of an applicable emission Bource without a permit
issued pursuant to Part 201,

26, Regulations at 6 NYCRR 231-2,3(b) prohibit the
operation of an applicable emigeion source without obtaining
emission offset credits. The emission offset credit of 1.15 to
1 is applicable to the new coating line.

27. Respondent has obtained neither a Part 201 permit nor
emission offset credits for the new coating line.

28. Respondent violated 6 NYCRR 231-2.3(a)and (b) by
constructing and operating the new coating line without a Part
201 permit and emission offset credits, respectively.

art 231-2.7 Vi

29, Regulations at 6 NYCRR 231-2.7(a) (2)require that “At
an existing non-major faocllity, LRER shall bs applied to
control emigsions of any nonattainment contaminant from each
emission source which is part of a proposad source project
wbich, by itself, has a project emisgsion potential of any such
nonattainment contaminant equal to or greatex than the
corresponding major facility size threshold in section 231-2.15
or 231-2.16 of thig Subpart,

30, Respondent has not applied LAER on its new coating
line which 1s a major source of VOCs.

31. Respondent violated 6 NYCRR 231-2.7(a) by not
applying LAER on the new coating line.
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32. Respondent was subjeat to Order om Conasent
R4-2140-99-01 whiech required, in part, that a stack test be
performed on emission point #0000D.

Civil Penalties

33. Section 71-2103 provides that:“Excoept as provided in
geation 71-2113, any peregon who violates any provision of
article ninetsen or any code, rule or regulatlen which was
promulgated pursuant thereto; or any order except an order
directing such person to pay a penalty by a gpeaified date
igsued by the commissioner pursuant thereto, shall be
iiagble, in the case of a first violation, for a penalty not
less than two bhundred f£ifty dollars nor more than ten
thousand dollars for said violation and an additional penalty
of not to excead ten thousand dollars for each day during
which such violation continues...”

Raiver

34, Respondent affirmatively walves the right to notice
and hearing in the manner provided by law and has conaented to
the issuing and entering of this Order and agrees to be bound
by the terms, provisions and conditions contained herein.

NOW, having considered this mattex and being duly advised,
it is ORDERED THAT:

I, in reapect of the aforesald vielations, a civil
penalty in the amount of FOUR HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS
(5400,000) is assessed against the Respondent for the above
violation. ONE HUNDRED TWENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($120,000) of
civil penalty is suspended cenditioned on Respondent’s
compliance with the Schedule of Compliance. Payment of the
suspended penalty ehall be due within fifteen (15) calendar
days of the receipt by the Respondent of a notice of viclation
from the Department which sets out the violations of the Ordex.
This provision shall not limit the Depaxtment & right to seek
other remedies provided by law and the applicable regulations
for violations of this Oxder on Consent and ECL Article 19 and
regulations, respectively, Respondent resexves its right to
request a hearing pursuant to 6 NYCRR 622 and any appeals
allowed under the CPLR rvegarding any allegations contained in a
notice of violation. The request foxr a hearing shall be made
to the Regional Director within ten (10) calendar days of
receipt of the notice of violation. Respondent shall pay TWO
HUNDRED EIGHTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($280,000) of the aivil penalty
by cextified cheok made payable to the Department of
Environmantal Conservation. The payment shall be made in
agoordance with the following schedulae: (1)ONE HUNDRED FORTY
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($140,000) with the return of the signed
Order; and (2) ONE HUNDRED FORTY THOUSAND DOLLARS (5140,000) by

January 31, 24001,
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II. The attached 9chedule of Compliance, the Best
Management Practice Plan, the Environmental Compliance
Evaluation System Plan, and any other document submitted
pursuant to this Order and approved by the Department, are
incorporated into and made part of this Order.

i{II. The effective date of this Order shall be the date
the Department signs the Oxder.

IV. Payment of the above civil penalty and compliance
with the terms and conditions of the Ordexr im accepted in full
settlement of the violations cited in this Order. This Ordex
does not address any vioclations of State hazardous waste
regulations or law. The Department shall not institute any
action or proceeding for penalties or other relief for the
violations described above for so long as Respondent (including
trustees, officers, employees, successors and assigns) remains
in compliance with this Order. Any failure by Respondent to
camply fully with the terms of this Order may subject the
Respondent to further enforcement action for the violations
cited herein, B&Except for the continuing viclations cited in
this Order, compliance with this Oxdex shall not excuse nor be
a defense to charges of any violations of the ECL or any
regulation or permit issued under the ECL, which may oooux
pubsequent to the date of this Order,

V. Respondent shall not be in default of compliance with
this Order to the extemt that Respondent may be unable to
comply with any provision of this Ordex because of the action
of a national or local government body or court, an act of God,
war, strike, riot or catastrophe ag to which the negligence or
willful conduct on the part of Respondent was not a proximate
cause. Respondent shall provide notice to the Department in
writing immediately upon obtaining knowledge of such event, and
shall request an appropriate modification to this Order.

Relief under this clauge ghall not be available to Regpondent,
with regard to a particular event, if Respondent fails to
provide timely notice of such event. The Respondent shall have
the burden of proving entitlement to relief under this clauaa.

VI. All reports and submissions herein required shall be
made to the Region 4 Headquarters, Attentiony Rick Leone, New
York State Department of Environmental Conservation, 1150 North
Westeott Road, Schenectady, New York 12306. All :
correspondence to Respondent shall be made to Respondent :
Taconic Plastics, LTD, Attn: Joel Shorter, P.O. Box 69,
Patersburgh, New York 12138 by certified mail/xeturn receipt.
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y1I. Por the puzposes of insuring compliance with this
Ordey, and with spplicable provisions of the ECL and
regulations promulgated under the ECL, representatives of this
Department shall be permitted access to the facility and to
relevant records during reasonable hours, in order to inspect
and/or pexform such tests as may be deemed approprlate to
determine the status of Respondent's compliance. Reasonable
hours shall include, but not be limited to, any houxs of
production, painting ox coating.

VIiII. The provisions of this Order shall be deemed to
bind Reapondent. Respondent is responsible for ensuring that
its officers, directors, agents, employees, contractora,
guccessors and assigns, and all persons, firms and corporations
acting under or for it, comply with the terms and conditions of

this Order.

IX. Thée terms of this Order shall not be construed to
prohibit the Commissioner of the Department or his duly
authorized representative from exercising any Summary Abatement
powers, either at common law or as granted pursuant to statute

or regulations,

X. Respondent shall indemnify and hold the Department,
the State of New York, and their representatives and employees
harmless for all e¢laims, sults, aotions, damages, <coate of
every name and description arising out of or resulting from the
fulfillment or attempted fulfillment of the provisione of this
Order by Respondent, its direotoxs, officers, employees,
servants, agents, succaessors or agsigns.

XT. 1f, for any reason, Regpondent desires that any
provisions of this Oxder be changed, Respondent ahall make
timely written application to the Department's Region 4
Regional Director setting forth reasonable grounds for the
relief sought. No change or wodification of this Order shsll
be made or be effective except as may be specifically set forth
in writing by the Department.

XTI. This Order on Consent’s Schedule of Compliance
supercedes the Bchedule of Compliance in Order on Consent
R4-2140-85-01, All othex texma, conditions and provieions of
Order on Consent R4~2140-99-01 remain in effeoct.
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DATED ¢ Rottexrdam, New York
Auguat /4 , 2000

John P. Cahill

Commigsionexr

New York State Department of
Environmental Conservation

eI

Steven &. Schassler
Regional Director
Region 4

CONSE Y SP B

Respondent hexeby consents to the issuing and entering of

this Order, waives its rights to not and heaying herein and
agrees to be bound by the provisio tirma onditions
contained herein. )

> /

woel] [hasil
o

sTaTE of Afew oRK
as:
COUNTY OF AL AAN

on thig 7* day of , 2000, before me
pexsonally came MES T p/AFEFE .+ to me koown, who being

by me duly sworn did depose and say that he resides in
belm&g: )Um% _ that he i8 _Lre¢slelent of Taconic
Plastics, LID described in and which executed the foregoing
instrument, and that he signed his name as authorized by said
Corperation, §

~

Nota lic

ELZABETH V., HAIGHT
Notary Public, State af New York
Qualified in Aensselaar
No, 01HAS081 788
Commission Explres July 14, 31_0..(.

/_._\

TACONIC_Paper-0039460



UL U L L rua NY r, 1l
nuy ¢g vu tuL NVRRYEVITY, NYSDEC PAGE 1@

o s emmm. messs
f

SCHEDULE OF COMPLIANCE

I. Within 60 days of the effective date of this Order,
Respondent shall install an jincinerator and associated volatile

organic compound (VOC) emission capture system on emiasion

point 0000D to control the emissions of total voce. The VOC
emission control system (inciperator and associated emisaion
capture system) shall be capable of achieving an a5% overall

removal efficiency.

II. Respondent shall cease using the new coating line until
the installation, and operation of the emission control
squipment required in Paragraph I. The Department authorizes
operation of the new coating line upon installation and
operation of the emipgion control equipment required in
Paragraph I.

1I1. Within 60 days of the effective date of this Order,
Respondent shall submit to the Department for approval a stack
testing protocol (“protocol”)to determine the compliance status
with respect to the overall VOC removal efficiency requirement,
and the Part 228.3 opacity limitation for emission point 0000D.
The protocol shall contain a summary of the specific objectives
of the stack testing program, pertinent information regarding
the parties involved in the test pxogram, process and emission
source descriptions, a figure detailing the sample locations,
process operating parameters and conditions, a desaription of
the incinerator, the praoposed sample collection and analysis
methodologies, and pertinent gquality assurance/equality control
(QA/QC) measures to be followed.

IV. Within 45 days of Department approval of the stack test
protocol for emission point 0000D, Respondent shall: (i)
conduct the emission point 0000D stack test in accordance with
the approved protocol; (i) conduct the PTFE ovens stack teet in
acoordance with the approved PTFE oven test protocol (dated
October 1959)unless the protocol is amended upon consent of the
Department and Respondent; and (iii) submit to the Department a
written report(s) of the testing results. Respondent shall
contact the Department at least 15 days prior to conducting the
stack testing to arrange for Department staff to witness the

tests.

V. Within 210 days of the effective date of this Order,
Respondent shall submit eithex a Title V or state facility
operating permit application prepared in accordance with 6
NYCRR Part 201. In addition to conmplying with the regulatory
requirements for the pexmit application, Respondent shall
include in the permit application stack testing results from
the PTFE ovene (performed in accordance with the October 1999
protocol approved by the Deparxrtment) .
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VI. A, Within 30 days of the effective date of this Order,
Respondent shall retain an independent third party auditor
(hereinafter the "Environmental Audit Consultant" ox "EAC"), to
sssess compliance at the facility as of the date of such audit,
with federal and state environmental laws, rules, xegulations
and pexmita.

B. The compliance audit shall be complated within 90
days of the effective date of this Order.

o Within 45 days after the completion of audit
activities at the facility, the Regpondent shall deliver to the
Department a written f£ipal Audit Report ("Audit Report']
prepared by the EAC based upon the compliance audit. The Audit
Report shall identify all instances of non-compliance with the
gtate and federal environmental laws, rules, regulations and
permits.

D. As part of the Audit Report, the EAC shall certify,
when applicable, that the audited areas are in compliance with
all statutory and regulatory requirements that were within the
scope of the audit, For any instance of non-compliance that
has been identified, the Respondent will develop and deliver
within forty-five (45) days of the delivery of the Audit Report
a plan for achieving or demonstrating compliance and a detailed
time schedule for implementing the plan. The Department will
review the plan to determine if it achieves cowpliance in an
expaditious manner. Upon the approval of the schedule,
Respondent shall comply with its requirements. The Department
agrees not to seek any civil or administrative penalties from
Respondent for aoy instances of non-compliance diasclosed in the
Audit Repoxt, provided Respondent ¢orrects each such condition
in accordance with compliance schedule, unless Raapondent had a
legal obligation, independent of this Ordexr, teo report guch
noncompliance to the Department, the Department discovered such
noncompliance independent of the audit after the effective date
of the Order, or Respondent knowingly or intentionally wviolated
a state law or regulation.

E. The Audit Report may be disc¢losed to third parties in
accordance with the provisions of tha Freedom of Information
Law (“FOIL"”). Respondent may purgsuant to 6 NYCRR 616.7 assert
wtyade secret” or “proprietary information” claims on those
portions of the Audit Report it deems subject Lo an exception
from disclosure. The Department will notify the Respondent of
any FOIL reguests for the Audit Report.

VII. within 30 daya of the effective date of this Oxder,
Respondant shall provide the Department with a copy of the
facility's Best Management Practice Plan and Environmental
compliance Evaluation System Plan and shall comply with these
documents. The plans shall be revised as necessary and any
revisions shall be provided to the Department within ten (10Q)
calenday days of implementation. Compliance with theae plars
will not be a defense to a violation of state environmental

laws or regulations.
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